
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, May 3, 2017 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Nomination and Election of Officers 
a. Nomination and Election of Chairperson 
b. Nomination and Election of Vice-Chairperson 

3. Approval of the Minutes of the April 19, 2017 Meeting 

4. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – Duggan Road and South Walters Road 
Review and consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located 
between Duggan Road and South Walters Road in the Town of Beloit 

5. Certified Survey Map – 1405 Madison Road and 1402 Townline Avenue 
Review and consideration of a four-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 
1405 Madison Road and 1402 Townline Avenue in the City of Beloit 

6. Zoning Map Amendment – 3375 Prairie Avenue  
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from R-1A, Single-
Family Residential District to C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located 
at 3375 Prairie Avenue 
 

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

8. Adjournment 

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact in the Planning and Building Services Office at 
364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  April 28, 2017 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 

Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, April 19, 2017 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Haynes, 
Weeden, Johnson, Faragher, Ruster, Finnegan, Tinder, and Councilor Leavy were present. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 5, 2017 Meeting 
Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the minutes from the April 5, 2017 meeting. 
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

3. Street Vacation – Penny Lane 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a petition to vacate and discontinue all of 
Penny Lane as a public right-of-way 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Tom Dolan, 1981 Bootmaker Drive, explained that he submitted the petition for vacation of 
a public right-of-way so he can build a garage.  Mr. Dolan also mentioned that the other 
applicant, Eric Gonstead, has no interest in owning his half of the right-of-way. 

Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the resolution. Commissioner Johnson seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 

4. Conditional Use Permit – 2100 Newark Road – Contractor Office Use 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit amendment to allow 
an expanded contractor office use in a DH, Development Holding District, for the property 
located at 2100 Newark Road in the City of Beloit 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the resolution. Commissioner Weeden seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen stated the easement for American Transmission Company over a portion 
of Eagles Ridge Park was approved on Monday. 
 
Councilor Leavy, Council President, indicated that he is thinking about being reappointed as 
Plan Commission representative. 
 
Ms. Christensen provided information on the Beloit Memorial High School Campus Master 
Plan. She provided background information regarding future campus land uses and how 
the City of Beloit will potentially be involved, both financially and in other ways. Ms. 
Christensen stated that the plans are still in the development stage and will not be made 
public until May 15, 2017. Commissioner Johnson asked if the campus master plan is part 
of the Fourth Street corridor plan. Ms. Christensen said that it is separate, and they felt 
that the top priority at this point is the campus master plan.  

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:31 pm.  
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts 

 



 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 3, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 4 
 

File Number: CSM-2017-04 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & 
Company 

Owner: Town of Beloit 
 

Location: Property located Between 
Duggan Road & South Walters Road, 
South of Townline Road, Parcel No. 6-
2-15A 

Existing Zoning: A-1, Agriculture Existing Land Use: Vacant Land Total CSM Area: 6,859,828.8 SF 
(157.48 AC) 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman & Co., on behalf of the Town of Beloit, has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision 
and a 3-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located between Duggan Road & South Walters Road, south of 
Townline Road, in the Town of Beloit. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan 
Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City of Beloit’s 
extraterritorial  jurisdiction where there is no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The proposed lots are currently zoned A-1 and the zoning will be changed as follows:  Lot 1 will be changed to I-
1, Light Industrial, Outlot 1 will be changed to C-1, Conservancy, and Lot 2 will be changed to R-1, Single Family 
Residential.    

 Lot 1 will have 2,431.16 feet of frontage on Duggan Road and will be approximately 58.63 acres.  
 Outlot 1 will have 157.01 feet of frontage on Duggan Rd and 157.01 feet of frontage on South Walters Road and 

will be approximately 7.43 acres. Outlot 1 will be dedicated to the public for landscape buffer and recreation 
purposes. 

 Lot 2 will have 661.95 feet frontage on Duggan Road and 1,827.91 feet of frontage on South Walters Road and 
will be approximately 91.42 acres.  

 Lot 1 will have a 100’ utility easement running through it from east to west.  
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any objections. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
N/A 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 3-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the property located Between Duggan Road & South Walters Road, south of Townline Road, in the Town of Beloit, 
subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2017. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution 
 
 
  



 
  



 
  



 
  



 
  



 

  



 

  



 
 



RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED BETWEEN DUGGAN ROAD & SOUTH WALTERS 

ROAD 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located 

between Duggan Road & South Walters Road, south of Townline Road, containing 157.48 acres, 

more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the Town of Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 

three-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

PARTS OF OUTLOT 2-6, 2-7, 2-8, AND 2-9 OF THE ASSESSOR’S PLAT OF 

BELOIT TOWNSHIP BEING LOCATED IN PART OF THE NW ¼, SW ¼, 

AND SE ¼ OF THE NW ¼ AND ALSO PART OF THE NE ¼, NW ¼, SW ¼, 

AND SE ¼ OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 2, ALL IN T. 1 N., R. 12 E., OF THE 

4
TH

 P.M., TOWN OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located between Duggan Road & South Walters Road, subject to the following 

condition: 

 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 

31, 2017. 

 

Adopted this 3
rd

 day of May, 2017. 

 

 

  _ 

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director 

 

 



May 3 Staff Report 5, CSM-2017-05, 1405 Madison Rd-1402 Townline Ave   

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 3, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: CSM-2017-05 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: Jeff Adleman 
 

Location: 1405 Madison Road & 1402 
Townline Avenue 
 

Existing Zoning: PUD Existing Land Use: Vacant Total Area: 4 Acres 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 4-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 1405 Madison Road & 1402 Townline Avenue. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of the proposed CSM is to reconfigure two existing parcels into four new lots in advance of Jeff 
Adleman’s proposed storage unit and duplex redevelopment project that was approved by the City Council as a 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) on February 6, 2017. 

 The approved PUD consists of up to three buildings containing up to 140 self-storage units and two duplexes 
along Whipple Street, and was approved subject to a condition requiring the attached CSM. 

 The proposed CSM creates a 2.723-acre lot (proposed Lot 4) for the storage unit development that includes the 
existing 1405 Madison Road parcel, which has 100 feet of frontage on Madison Road. Proposed Lot 4 also 
includes a 2,200 square-foot, triangle-shaped piece of land being purchased from the adjacent gas station 
property for driveway access. Proposed Lots 1-3 consist of two duplex lots and a lot devoted to stormwater 
management. 

 In addition, the proposed CSM dedicates a 33-foot strip of land along the eastern edge as right-of-way for the 
future improvement of Townline Avenue, including the construction of sidewalks. 

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Community Commercial uses of the subject properties. Consideration of 
this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #3. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 4-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the properties located at 1405 Madison Road & 1402 Townline Avenue, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall provide proof of ownership of all mapped lands prior to recording the CSM. 
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2017. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: CSM and Application 
 



May 3 Staff Report 5, CSM-2017-05, 1405 Madison Rd-1402 Townline Ave   



May 3 Staff Report 5, CSM-2017-05, 1405 Madison Rd-1402 Townline Ave   



May 3 Staff Report 5, CSM-2017-05, 1405 Madison Rd-1402 Townline Ave   

 



May 3 Staff Report 5, CSM-2017-05, 1405 Madison Rd-1402 Townline Ave   

 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue     

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 3, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 6 File Number: ZMA-2017-02 

Applicant: Nicole Fischer 
 

Owner: Kenneth & Judith Draeving 
 

Location: 3375 Prairie Avenue 
 

Current Zoning: R-1A 
Proposed Zoning: C-3 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Land Parcel Size: 1.995 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Nicole Fischer has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from 
R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 3375 Prairie 
Avenue. 
 
The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning 
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 
  
Key Issues: 

 The subject property is a vacant 2-acre parcel along Prairie Avenue/County Highway G, located immediately 
north of the YMCA Sports Complex. 

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property for future retail development. The 
current owner of record has signed the application. A wide range of retail sales & service uses are permitted in 
the C-3 district 

 If this rezoning request is approved, the applicant may be submitting a separate request for a convenience store 
with a drive-through component. Drive-through uses require a Conditional Use Permit in all commercial districts. 

 The applicant has not developed a site plan or architectural renderings at this time. A site plan would be a 
required component of an application for a Conditional Use Permit. 

 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and the zoning of the 
surrounding area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 

o North: R-1A; Single-Family Dwellings 
o South: C-1, Office District; Athletic Fields 
o East: R-1A; Single-Family Dwellings 
o West: Town of Beloit 

 Planning staff posted an informational sign on the subject property and mailed the attached Public Notice to the 
owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has not received any comments. 

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 The subject property is located on an arterial roadway that also serves as County Road G. 
Nearby land uses include the YMCA sports complex, heavy commercial (storage units), retail 
stores, and offices. If this site is developed, a Landscape Buffer will be required between the 
subject property and the adjacent residential parcels. The allowed retail sales & service uses 
in the C-3 district are compatible with the surrounding land uses. 

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 The sports complex and vacant parcel to the south are zoned C-1, while the storage unit 
development further south was developed as a Planned Unit Development (PUD). There is 
an existing C-3 parcel approximately 500 feet to the south (Glitz & Go - 3311 Prairie Avenue). 

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; 
and 

 The subject property is suitable for the uses permitted in the R-1A district, although the high 
traffic volumes along Prairie Avenue may be inhibiting single-family development. 

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property. 

 The property located at 3311 Prairie Avenue was rezoned from C-1 to C-3 in 2014 in order 
allow retail sales in the existing building at that location. Aside from that application, there has 
been very little development activity and few zoning map amendments in the immediate area 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue     

during the past decade. Ideally, the establishment of retail sales & service uses at this 
location may catalyze some redevelopment activity along the Prairie Avenue corridor. The 
Inman Parkway extension between Prairie Avenue and Shopiere Road is less than ½ mile 
south of the subject property, which may also spur nearby redevelopment activity. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (#10) recommends Planned Mixed Uses and identifies the subject 
property as the northern limit of the Prairie Avenue Planned Mixed Use District. This recommendation is intended to guide 
future redevelopment of this area as a mixed-use center, so many plan recommendations regarding mixed-use buildings 
and prairie-style architecture are not exactly applicable to this specific rezoning request. However, the plan does 
recommend PUD or C-3 zoning for Planned Mixed Use areas. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #3. 
 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact 
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division 
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District to C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 3375 Prairie Avenue. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue 

 
 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue 

 

 
 

 

 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue  

 
 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue  

 
 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue 

 



May 3 Staff Report 6, ZMA-2017-02, 3375 Prairie Avenue 

 


